ORIGINAL

FILED THOMAS D. HALL

MAY 1 0 2001

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA DU

Thomas Parker,

Petitioner,

VS.

Case No. <u>SCO1-1013</u>

State of Florida and State of Florida,

Respondents.

4th DCA No. 4D00-3914

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Alan H. Schreiber Public Defender 17th Judicial Circuit

Diane M. Cuddihy Chief Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 434760 201 S.E. 6th Street North Wing - Third Floor Ft. Lauderdale, Fl. 33301

Attorney for Petitioner

Statement of the Case

Petitioner was the petitioner in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida. Respondent, State of Florida, was the respondent in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the circuit court. The district court denied petitioner's writ of habeas corpus and petitioner's motion for rehearing. A Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction was timely filed.

The Petitioner, Thomas Parker, shall be referred to as "petitioner." The Respondent shall be referred to as "respondent." References to the Petitioner's Appendix shall be designated by the symbol "A."

Statement of the Facts

The Petitioner, Thomas Parker, was arrested on June 27, 2000, and charged with fleeing and eluding, resisting arrest without violence and driving while license suspended. He was released from jail after posting a \$2,700 bond. The petitioner was subsequently arrested on August 24, 2000, for possession of cocaine with intent to sell and possession of marijuana. The petitioner was released from custody after posting a \$2,500 bond.

On September 29, 2000, the petitioner appeared in court for a scheduled status conference in his first case. The state advised the court that the defendant had a second pending charge and made an ore tenus motion to revoke petitioner's bond in the first case. Defense counsel objected that she was not given any notice of the state's request. The court stated:

Reading the statute the Court can do it on its own based on reading it in chambers. I don't have to receive any motion; I don't have to receive any offer, just finding there is probable cause. I'm finding there is probable cause for the new arrest. I have read the probable cause affidavit. The Court finds there is probable cause. The Court is revoking bond. He can file any motions to set bond.

The petitioner was remanded into custody without bond.

The petitioner filed a motion entitled "Motion to Reconsider Revocation of Bond Based on the Unconstitutionality of Florida Statute 903.0471." The state filed

a response and the court heard testimony regarding the petitioner's ties to the community and argument of counsel. The petitioner testified that he is a 21 year resident of Broward County and resides with his grandmother. He stated that he had never failed to appear for a court appearance. Counsel for petitioner argued that Florida Statute 903.0471, which provides for pretrial detention upon a finding that a defendant committed a new offense while on bond, is unconstitutional. The trial court denied petitioner's bond and ruled the statute constitutional.

Petitioner filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. The district court denied the writ and issued an opinion finding constitutional Florida Statute 903.0471. Parker v. State, 26 Fla.L.Weekly D 396 (Fla. 4th DCA 2001) (a copy of which is contained in Petitioner's Appendix) Specifically, the district court held that the statute did not violate substantive or procedural due process and did not violate the Florida Constitution's guarantee to bail. The court denied rehearing. The petitioner filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction.

Summary of Argument

This Honorable Court has jurisdiction over the instant case pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. This section empowers the Court to review any decision of a district court which expressly declares valid a state statue. *Sub judice*, the Fourth District Court of Appeal reversed the trial court and expressly declared valid Florida Statute 903.0471(2000).

Argument

Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Constitution of the State of Florida empowers this Honorable Court to review any decision of a district court which expressly declares valid a state statute. This Court has repeatedly accepted discretionary jurisdiction to review such decisions. <u>Cuda v. State</u>, 639 So. 2d 22 (Fla. 1994); <u>Gilbreath v. State</u>, 650 So. 2d 10 (Fla. 1995); <u>Bouters v. State</u>, 659 So. 2d 235 (Fla. 1995).

It is important that Florida Statute 903.0471 be reviewed by this Court. The statute provides for pretrial detention of a criminal defendant upon a finding of probable cause for the commission of a crime while on pretrial release. The statute does not provide for a hearing in violation of procedural due process and utilizes a probable cause standard in violation of substantive due process. More importantly, section 903.0471 does not require a finding that no condition of bond can reasonably

protect the community from risk of physical harm to persons, assure the presence of the accused at trial, or assure the integrity of the judicial process. Article 1, section 14 of the Florida Constitution commands such a finding before bond can be denied. The statute is invoked on a daily basis in courtrooms throughout the state resulting in the detention without bond of many defendants.

This Court recently acknowledged in <u>Paul v. State</u>, 26 Fla.L. Weekly S185 (Fla. March 30, 2001) that the Florida Constitution guarantees bail with limited exceptions. <u>Id.</u> at S187. This Court further noted that bond statutes and rules enacted pursuant to bond statutes must "incorporate the considerations required to balance the court's need to enforce its orders, the need for society to be protected from those posing a danger to the community, and the defendant's constitutional rights to bail based on the time-honored presumption of innocence." <u>Id.</u> at S188. Florida Statute 903.0471 violates a defendant's constitutional right to bail.

CONCLUSION

This Honorable Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. Petitioner respectfully requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and accept this case for review.