Na

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

....

CASE NO. SC01-1013

FILED THOMAS D. HALL

JUN 2 5 2001

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

THOMAS PARKER,

Petitioner

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL Tallahassee, Florida CELIA TERENZIO

BUREAU CHIEF, WEST PALM BEACH Florida Bar No. 656879

MARIA J. PATULLO ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Florida Bar No. 0975842 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401-2299 Telephone: (561) 688-7759 Fax: (561) 688-7771

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent State of Florida was the Appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecuting authority in the trial court and will be referred to here as Respondent or the state. Petitioner was the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court and will be referred to as Petitioner or by proper name.

A bold typeface will be used to add emphasis. Italics appeared in original quotations, unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The pertinent history and facts are set out in the decision of the district court, which can be found at <u>Parker v. State</u>, 780 So. 2d 210 (Fla. 4th DCA 2001) (Appendix A).

The district court held that Florida Statute §903.0471 clarified that the legislature had not intended that Florida Statute §907.041 had to be followed after a defendant committed a new crime while on pretrial release. <u>Parker</u> at 211. Further, the district court held section §903.0471 does not violate substantive due process because it authorizes a court to deny a second pretrial release upon finding probable cause that a defendant committed a new crime and does not violate procedural due process because the petitioner is not entitled to more due process than is guaranteed by Article I, section 14 of the Florida Constitution.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A summary is not given because of the brevity of the argument.

÷

.

ARGUMENT

SHOULD THIS COURT EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT WHICH HELD FLORIDA STATUTE 903.0471(2000) CONSTITUTIONAL AND DOES NOT VIOLATE SUBSTANTIVE AND PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESS?

Petitioner contends that this Court has discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to <u>Fla. R. App. P.</u> 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i), which parallels Article V, § 3(b)(3), <u>Fla. Const.</u> The constitution provides:

The supreme court ... [m]ay review any decision of a district court of appeal that <u>expressly declares</u> valid a state statute (e.s.).

The opinion can be construed to pass upon the constitutionality of the statute, however, respondent submits that this Court should nonetheless decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction. There is no reason why this Court should treat the district courts as mere intermediate courts whose decisions are subject to review by this court any time there is discretionary jurisdiction.

In <u>Ansin v. Thurston</u>, 101 So. 2d 808, 810 (Fla. 1958), this Court explained:

> It was never intended that the district courts of appeal should be intermediate courts. The revision and modernization of the Florida judicial system at the appellate level was prompted by the great volume of cases reaching the Supreme Court and the consequent delay in the administration of justice. The new article embodies throughout its terms the idea of a Supreme Court which functions as a supervisory body in the

judicial system for the State, exercising appellate power in certain specified areas essential to the settlement of issues of public importance and the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice, with review by the district courts in most instances being final and absolute.

Also, the decision below thoroughly examines the issue and nothing in it is exceptional or objectionable. Moreover, the statute at issue is a standard bail statute which is in effect statewide and will be subject to review by all five district courts. Should any one of those courts expressly declare it invalid, there will be direct and express conflict and mandatory review pursuant to Art V, sect. 3(b)(1), <u>Fla. Const.</u> Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise discretionary jurisdiction.

Finally, Respondent adds that if this Court does choose to exercise discretionary jurisdiction on whether Florida Statute \$903.0471 is constitutional, that there will be thousands of other discretionary review cases to follow. Accordingly, if discretionary review is exercised, this Court should immediately issue a reported opinion directing all district courts to conduct routine appellate review of all other such challenges but to stay their mandates and extend the time in which rehearing may be sought until this Court issues its decision here. <u>See</u>, <u>Jollie v.</u> <u>State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) (District court decisions grounded on cases which are under review in the Florida Supreme Court should be stayed in the district court pending resolution in the Florida Supreme Court.)

CONCLUSION

This Court should decline to exercise discretionary jurisdiction.

.